



Magnolia Public Schools

Minutes

Regular Board Meeting

Date and Time Thursday August 8, 2024 at 6:00 PM

Location Home Office: 250 E. 1st Street, Suite 1500, Los Angeles, CA, 90012

Board Members:

Mr. Mekan Muhammedov, Chair Ms. Sandra Covarrubias, Vice-Chair Dr. Umit Yapanel Dr. Salih Dikbas Ms. Diane Gonzalez

Student Board Member: Naim Bayraktar

CEO & Superintendent: Mr. Alfredo Rubalcava

Directors Present

D. Gonzalez, M. Muhammedov, S. Dikbas, U. Yapanel

Directors Absent

S. Covarrubias

Guests Present

J. Lara

I. Opening Items

A. Call the Meeting to Order

M. Muhammedov called a meeting of the board of directors of Magnolia Public Schools to order on Thursday Aug 8, 2024 at 6:23 PM.

B. Pledge of Allegiance

Board, staff and guests conducted the pledge of allegiance.

C. Record Attendance and Guests

Refer to attendance information recorded above. Naim Bayraktar, Student Board Member, was present.

D. Approval of Agenda

- D. Gonzalez made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.
- U. Yapanel seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

U. Yapanel	Aye
S. Covarrubias	Absent
S. Dikbas	Aye
M. Muhammedov	Aye
D. Gonzalez	Aye

E. Public Comments

No public comments were made at this time.

F. Announcements

A. Rubalcava, CEO & Superintendent, reported that Esra Eldem was given the opportunity to do additional work at the University of Southern California (USC) and would therefore step down from the Board role due to these commitments. He thanked her for her service on the Board. He also thanked the school sites for working diligently for the preparation of the first day of school. Magnolia Science Academy (MSA)-Santa Ana and MSA-San Diego would be starting on August 12th and all other MSA schools would start on August 13th. He reported that parent orientations would take place in the next couple of days and that Home Office staff will be at the school sites to support and invited all Board Members to attend as well.

G. Serce, Chief Academic Officer, highlighted the various in-service trainings and orientations that took place at MSA-Santa Ana. School leaders across all schools attended these trainings and separately, teachers both tenure and new participated. He reported that is was successful with the focus of getting ready for the school year.

G. Approval of Minutes from MPS Regular Board Meeting - July 11, 2024

U. Yapanel made a motion to approve the minutes from Regular Board Meeting on 07-11-24.

M. Muhammedov seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

D. Gonzalez Aye U. Yapanel Aye S. Dikbas Aye M. Muhammedov Aye S. Covarrubias Absent

II. Information/Discussion Items

A. Brown Act & Conflict of Interest Training

Kaela Haydu, Senior Council at Young, Minnie & Corr LLP (YM&C) provided an extensive Brown Act and Conflict of Interest Training to the Board. Board Members and staff questions were addressed by legal counsel. She reported that the Board will also undergo an Ethics Training under AB 2158 which would be sometime in 2025.

S. Covarrubias was not in attendance for this meeting. She completed her Brown Act & Conflict of Interest Training on July 25, 2024 prior to this meeting. All other Board Members were present and in-person.

B. Update on Facilities Projects

P. Ontiveros, General Counsel & Director of Facilities, reported that in regards to the Magnolia Science Academy (MSA)-5 project at 7111 Winnetka Ave., he stated that money was received from the state. In addition, staff followed legal guidance on further proceedings. Representatives from Gateway provided detailed updates to the Board on actions taken to move the project along. They reported that the timeline of completion was adjusted and the Board will receive more details at the next Board Meeting. P. Ontiveros in addition to M. Sahin, Facilities Project Manager, and K. Jimenez, Assistant Facilities Project Manager, also provided updates on the facilities projects at MSA-1, MSA-2, MSA-7, and MSA-Santa Ana. Board questions were addressed by staff.

III. Action Items

Approval of Updated EL Master Plan

K. Mann, Director of EL & ELA Programs, presented the updated EL Master Plan for the 2024-25 school year. She reported that it is reviewed annually and brought to the Board to ensure that MPS continues to provide services to the English Learner population that meet all compliance with state and federal regulations. The proposed revisions for this years plan was made based on updated guidance from the California Department of Education and feedback from EL Coordinators and school leaders. She reported on the revisions made including: updated language regarding the administration of the Initial and Summative ELPAC assessment to students in grades Kindergarten through 12 only, clarification on the required score of 3 on the Summative Alternate ELPAC assessment to meet reclassification requirements, and the addition of the Write Brain ELD program as an approved supplementary resource for Designated ELD at the Elementary level. Board Members questions were addressed by staff.

U. Yapanel made a motion to approve the changes to the MPS English Learner Master Plan.

S. Dikbas seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

U. Yapanel Aye M. Muhammedov Aye D. Gonzalez Aye S. Covarrubias Absent S. Dikbas Aye

B. Approval of Board Resolution for Creation of Position for MSA-4 for the Improvement of Academic Support

D. Hajmeirza, Director of People & Performance, reported that the resolution is to move forward with approving the creation of position of multiple subject teacher for Magnolia Science Academy(MSA)-4 for the improvement of academic support effective for the 2024-25 school year. She reported that staff determined the need for the addition of a middle school teacher to the overall number of teachers at MSA-4. She reported that the school currently has 155 completed enrollments with additional 31 students in the pipeline. MSA-4 adopted budget for 2024-25 was based on 144 students, so due to the positive growth the school will receive additional funds. E. Rizzuto, Principal at MSA-4, highlighted the need for the multi subject teacher to support the growth at the middle school. Board Members questions were addressed by staff.

U. Yapanel made a motion to approve the board resolution #20240808-01 for creation of position(s) for Magnolia Science Academy-4 due to improvement of academic support effective 2024-25 school year.

M. Muhammedov seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call S. Dikbas

Aye

Roll Call

M. Muhammedov Aye U. Yapanel Aye D. Gonzalez Aye

S. Covarrubias Absent

IV. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:09 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, M. Muhammedov